
  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

Planning Commission 
  
  
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Date:   4/20/2020 
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
GoToWebinar.com – ID #228-837-467 
 

A. Call To Order  
 
Chair Andrew Barnes introduced staff person Leo Tapia. Mr. Tapia indicated he would act as the 
meeting clerk and provided information on procedures and mechanics for participation in the online 
public meeting.  
 
Chair Andrew Barnes called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call  
 
Present: Andrew Barnes (Chair), Chris DeCardy, Michael Doran, Larry Kahle, Henry Riggs (Vice 
Chair), Michele Tate 
 
Absent: Camille Kennedy 
 
Staff: Kaitie Meador, Senior Planner; Leigh Prince, Assistant City Attorney; Corinna Sandmeier, 
Senior Planner 
 

C. Reports and Announcements 
 
Senior Planner Corinna Sandmeier said the City Council at its April 21, 2020 meeting would hear the 
11 Greenwood Place project that was approved by the Planning Commission on March 23, 2020 for 
a new two-story home on a substandard lot. She said that project also included a variance request 
for the front setback from the City’s Subdivision Ordinance that the Council had to consider for 
action. She said the Council would also discuss next steps for the Belle Haven Community Center 
and Library project. She said that Commissioner Camille Kennedy emailed that she would not be in 
attendance for this evening’s Planning Commission meeting   
 
Commissioner Chris DeCardy asked how staff was addressing inequity for those without internet 
service related to public access to the meetings. Planner Sandmeier said in response to an earlier 
comment staff received about those who only had audio access to the meetings staff would read 
written comments not included in the staff report in full rather than just showing them on the screen.  
 
Commissioner Michele Tate asked about additional steps made to make community members 
aware of meetings. Planner Sandmeier noted that notifications for projects are mailed to those within 
a 300-foot radius of a subject property and include a published legal notice in the newspaper. She 
said notices and agendas were posted online and people could request to receive notice whenever 
a new agenda was posted. Commissioner Tate said her question was guided toward Belle Haven as 
a number of persons there did not have internet access.  
 
Commissioner Michael Doran noted his question at the last Commission meeting as to whether the 
City was accepting new building permit applications. He asked if the City was now accepting new 

  



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 2  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

applications or whether a schedule was available as to when they would be. Planner Sandmeier said 
she thought they were looking at starting with smaller permit applications such as encroachment 
permits or water heater permits. Commissioner Doran commented that many people’s livelihoods  
depended on getting back to work. He said once the quarantine situation was better that the faster 
people could get back to work the better off everyone would be. 
 

D.  Public Comment  
     

Mr. Tapia referred to the green hand icon to be used by those wanting to speak. He noted that there 
were no attendees showing at this time.  
 
Chair Barnes read the agenda item.  
 
Chair Barnes closed the item as there were no speakers. 

 
E. Consent Calendar 
 
E1. Approval of minutes from the March 23, 2020, Planning Commission meeting. (Attachment) 
 

ACTION: Motion and second (DeCardy/Henry Riggs) to approve the Consent Calendar consisting of 
the minutes from the March 23, 2020 Planning Commission meeting; passes 6-0-1 with 
Commissioner Kennedy absent.  

 
F. Public Hearing 
 
F1. Use Permit/Ruchi and Rajeev Goel/930 Hermosa Way:  

Request for a use permit to demolish an existing one-story, single-family residence and detached 
garage, and construct a new two-story residence and detached accessory dwelling unit on a 
substandard lot with regard to lot width in the R-E (Residential Estate) district. Continued to a 
future meeting by the applicant 

 
F2. Use Permit and Architectural Control/R. Tod Spieker/1466 San Antonio Street:  

Request for use permit for excavation to a depth of greater than 12 inches within the required front 
and side setbacks associated with revised/reconstructed retaining walls, and architectural control to 
approve exterior modifications to an existing multi-family residential building in the R-3 (Apartment) 
zoning district. (Staff Report #20-022-PC) 

 
 Chair Barnes outlined the process for hearing the item. 
 

Staff Comment: Senior Planner Kaitie Meador said she had no updates to the item. 
 
Applicant Presentation: Gauri Gupte, Edwin Bruce Associates Architects, introduced Edwin Bruce. 
Ms. Gupte said the remodeling project consisted mainly of replacing windows and adding new trim. 
She said the walkway from the sidewalk on San Antonio Street to the building was repaved and 
walls were added to each side of it. She said when they started the application process some 
improvements were permitted and carried out such as the fence wall between the subject and 
neighboring property.  
 
Commissioner Larry Kahle said the staff report noted vertical wood siding under the windows and 
the photos showed horizontal wood siding. He asked if that was an error or if the siding would be 

https://menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24773
https://menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24771


Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 3  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

replaced in the future. Mr. Bruce said he was looking at a picture on their cover page and the panels 
under the windows had horizontal lap siding. Ms. Meador said that should have read horizontal. 
Commissioner Kahle confirmed with Mr. Bruce that all the work was already completed. 
Commissioner Kahle noted the parking below a soft story building and asked if an engineer had 
looked at this for any potential seismic upgrades to strengthen the building. Mr. Bruce said he had 
been an architect for the property owners for several years and to his knowledge that had not 
occurred. Kevin Livingston, Spieker Companies, said no structural engineer had looked at the 
carport. 
 
Chair Barnes said the staff report indicated the improvements had already been completed prior to 
seeking approval. He asked how that transpired. Mr. Livingston said retrofit windows were installed 
to replace single-pane aluminum windows, which was step one. He said to remedy a couple of 
windows that went from floor to ceiling in the living room that included the lap siding mentioned to 
bring them 24-inches up off the finished floor level. He said next the building was painted. He said 
the walkway and fence that were wooden were rotting as the wood was against the dirt and those 
were replaced with the stucco walls for the walkway. He said in reply to Chair Barnes that the 
previous owner did some upgrade work. He said Spieker Companies did the window work. Chair 
Barnes asked why with its extensive property management expertise the firm did not get the proper 
permitting for the work. Mr. Livingston said it was their understanding that retrofit windows did not 
require removal of any structural or exterior weatherproofing materials and thus did not require a 
permit. He said regarding the walkway and below the 12-inch depth that an existing wood pathway 
at the front of the building, which structurally was not holding material back as the wood was rotting 
was replaced with the CMU (concrete masonry unit) build block. He said they did not think retrofit 
windows required a permit as they were not breeching any of the building weatherproofing. He said 
regarding the CMU walls the height of them and the area they were located they thought constituted 
same-as replacement of the wood fence. 
 
Chair Barnes opened the public hearing and closed it as there no speakers. 
 
Commission Comment: Commissioner Kahle said the changes were fairly minor and if the 12-inch 
excavation and cosmetic work had come before them prior to completion it would have been straight 
forward. He said the request now was coming as a violation especially with the extra unit that was 
included and he thought the work should meet a higher bar. He said he was concerned that the 
building was not seismically safe. He proposed adding a condition that the property owners have a 
licensed structural engineer do a seismic study. He said the condition would not require the work 
recommended by that study be done but to provide information to the property owners so they could 
look at doing the work to ensure safety in the event of an earthquake. Mr. Livingston said that they 
would be open to doing such a study. 
 
Commissioner Kahle moved to approve with an added condition that a structural engineering study 
be done of the building to evaluate the soft story for seismic safety. Commissioner Riggs said he 
hesitated to add a condition as the improvements although done without proper permitting were 
acceptable and a benefit to the community. He said as Mr. Livingston was agreeable to the condition 
proposed that he would second the motion. 
 
Chair Barnes said an engineering study on the soft story was a public good and he could support the 
motion. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Kahle/Riggs) to approve the item with the following modification; 
passes 6-0-1 with Commissioner Kennedy absent. 
 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 4  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

1. Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures”) of the current California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 

2. Make findings, as per Section 16.82.030 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the granting of 
use permit, that the proposed excavation into the required yard will not be detrimental to the 
health, safety, morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of such proposed use, and will not be detrimental to property and improvements in 
the neighborhood or the general welfare of the City. 
 

3. Adopt the following findings, as per Section 16.68.020 of the Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to 
architectural control approval: 
 
a. The general appearance of the structure is in keeping with the character of the 

neighborhood. 
 

b. The development will not be detrimental to the harmonious and orderly growth of the city. 
 

c. The development will not impair the desirability of investment or occupation in the 
neighborhood. 
 

d. The development provides adequate parking as required in all applicable city ordinances and 
has made adequate provisions for access to such parking. 
 

e. The property is not within any Specific Plan area, and as such no finding regarding 
consistency is required to be made. 

 
4. Approve the architectural control and use permit subject to the following standard conditions: 
 

a. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by 
Edwin Bruce Associates Architects, consisting of 11 plan sheets, date stamped April 13, 
2020, and approved by the Planning Commission on April 20, 2020, except as modified by 
the conditions contained herein, subject to review and approval by the Planning Division. 

 
b. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo 

Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly applicable to 
the project. 

 
c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all requirements of the 

Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly 
applicable to the project. 

  



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 5  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility 
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and Building 
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be placed 
underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact locations 
of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes, and 
other equipment boxes. 

 
e. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall 

submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged and 
significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted for review 
and approval of the Engineering Division. 

 
f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall 

submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering Division.  
The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of grading, 
demolition or building permits. 
 

g. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected pursuant to the 
Heritage Tree Ordinance. 

 
5.   Approve the architectural control and use permit, subject to the following project-specific  

condition: 
 

a. The applicant shall conduct a structural analysis of the building and provide a report 
for review and approval of the Planning and Building Divisions prior to building permit 
issuance and resolution of the code enforcement case. 

 
G. Study Session 
 
G1. Study Session/Andrew Morcos/165 Jefferson Drive:  Request for a study session review for a future 

application for a use permit, architectural control, environmental review, and BMR agreement. The 
proposal includes demolition of an existing 24,300- square-foot office building and redevelopment of 
the site with approximately 158 multi-family dwelling units and a 14,422-square-foot commercial 
space with an above grade, three-story parking garage integrated into the proposed eight-story 
building, located in the R-MU-B (Residential Mixed Use, Bonus) zoning district. The proposal 
includes a request for an increase in height, density and floor area ratio (FAR) under the bonus level 
development allowance in exchange for community amenities. The proposal would also utilize the 
density bonus provisions in the BMR Housing Program, which allows density and FAR bonuses, and 
exceptions to the City’s Zoning Ordinance requirements when BMR units are incorporated into the 
project. (Staff Report #20-023-PC) 

 
Staff Comment: Planner Meador noted that two written comments had been received. Chair Barnes 
confirmed those would be read under public comment. 

 
Questions of Staff: Commissioner Kahle asked if the location of the paseo on the east side was 
prescribed or if there was some flexibility about its location. Planner Meador said she believed it was 
required on the side shown and it had to be shared by this property and the neighboring property. 
She said ConnectMenlo indicated where and on what properties paseos should be. 
 

https://menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24772


Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 6  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

Commissioner DeCardy said the staff report on the top of page 3 said: Staff has reviewed the project 
components and determined that the preliminary application is complete. He asked what the date 
was for that. Planner Meador said that date was based on the original submittal date of the SB330 
preliminary application. She said that occurred the end of January 2020 and she could look up the 
exact date. Commissioner DeCardy said that was not necessary. 
 
Commissioner Riggs said SB330 put heavy restrictions on design review. He asked if design review 
was more extensive for bonus level development based on City code. Planner Meador noted that 
Assistant City Attorney Leigh Prince was available if her own explanation was not full enough. She 
said bonus level projects would be subject to design review the same as base level projects. She 
said SB330 had restrictions on the Commission requesting a reduction of the proposed project 
density. She said the Commission could still comment on design elements but those comments 
could not require a reduction in the density of the proposed building. 
 
Chair Barnes noted on pages 11 and 12 of the staff report items listed for the Commission’s 
discussion this evening. He asked about the one on density and the question: Does the Planning 
Commission believe that the proposed project is generally appropriate for the site? Planner Meador 
said under SB330 the Commission could not ask for a reduction of the proposed density. She said 
the Commission might look in general at height or such things rather than unit count and density 
while keeping in mind that height could impact density. 
 
Chair Barnes asked for more detail about the questions under the topic of Building Modulations. 
Planner Meador said the applicant could request a use permit to modify any of the design standards. 
She said that this project might need some minor changes to the proposed modulations to meet the 
modulation requirements of the R-MU-B zoning district. She said the applicant could choose not to 
make those edits to meet the requirements for the modulations or could make a use permit request 
to modify those slightly. She said the question was whether the Commission thought the 
modulations met the intent of the modulation requirements as proposed and if it would be supportive 
of a use permit to modify them. She said she did not know if the applicant would want to pursue a 
use permit. She said staff noticed through preliminary review that there were a few changes that 
needed to be made to comply. 
 
Chair Barnes referred to the topic of community amenities. He said there was a list of community 
amenities for the area. He asked if it was a strict understanding that something had to be on that list 
to be considered. He asked if there was a process for considering a community amenity that was not 
on the list. Assistant City Attorney Leigh Prince said within SB330 projects that an applicant was 
limited to the list that was in place at the time the completed application was submitted. She said 
that had to come from the resolution adopted by the City Council listing community amenities. She 
said the bullet point in the staff report she believed came from that community amenities list. She 
said they were looking at what the Commission wanted in terms of community amenities from those 
on the list. 
 
Commissioner Kahle said page 10 of the staff report read: Several minor modulations are proposed 
along the Jefferson Drive and paseo frontages. These proposed recesses would not meet the minor 
modulation requirements and the design would need to be revised because these elements do not 
extend to the full height of the building, as required by the design standards. He asked staff to 
explain more fully. Planner Meador said the issue was the minor modulations were not extending to 
the full height of the building and currently were proposed to extend to the base height of the 
building. She said also they might need more clarification on the dimensions to confirm actually if the 
modulations were meeting all the requirements. 
 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 7  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

Applicant Presentation: Andrew Morcos, Senior Development Director for Greystar in Menlo Park, 
said Menlo Flats was his firm’s fourth multi-family project in the Bayside area of Menlo Park. He said 
its 158 units were made up of small studios and four bedroom, four baths, with 21 affordable below 
market rate (BMR) units located onsite and equitably distributed throughout. He said over 5,400 
square feet of publicly accessible open space was included and consolidated along the paseo. He 
said it exceeded the requirement by 46%. He said the project included over 14,000 square feet of 
commercial space on the ground floor street frontage and could contribute to the community amenity 
requirement. He said the paseo was to create a future connection between Constitution and 
Jefferson and had 232 bicycle parking spaces along it. He said the project was consistent with 
Menlo Park’s environmental goals and would achieve 100% LEED Gold design standard and be 
powered by 100% renewable energy along with substantial EV charging opportunities. 
 
Chair Barnes said he had asked through staff to have Greystar provide an overview of their Menlo 
Park projects either completed or in the pipeline. 
 
Mr. Morcos said Greystar started its work in Menlo Park in 2013 along Haven Avenue. He said that 
project was completed in 2017 and had 146 units of one, two and three-bedroom units. He said the 
next project introduced since adoption of ConnectMenlo was Menlo Uptown. He said that would 
have 483 housing units with 441 of those multi-family rentals and 42 townhomes. He said target 
entitlement for that project was December 2020. He said the project Menlo Portal on Constitution 
and Independence was located between Menlo Gateway with 335 multi-family units and 36,000 
square feet of commercial space. He said target entitlement for that project was also December 
2020. He said Menlo Flats presented tonight at 165 Jefferson Drive had 158 housing units and 
15,000 square feet of commercial space. He said the projects would provide over 1100 housing 
units. 
 
Clark Manus, Heller Manus Architects, said the project would have 176 parking spaces with 138 
residential and 38 commercial spaces. He said there was a two-foot grade interior and exterior 
difference for sea level rise. He showed slides of the different elevations. He then provided slides of 
the different floor level plans. He showed a plan of the private and public open space. 
 
Karen Krolewski, PGA Design, provided information on the ground level landscape plan. She said 
the paseo would feature lush plantings including a robust canopy with low water use, bicycle 
parking, sculptural benches, pedestrian-scale light decorative paving, and location for public art. 
 
Commissioner Doran said he understood that Greystar was a build and hold developer and operated 
its rental facilities. Mr. Morcos said that Greystar generally operated its holdings long term but 
whether they owned them during that period depended upon the development. Commissioner Doran 
noted AB1482 enacted the past fall that placed rent caps in California and eviction controls that 
would immediately apply to this project. He asked how that bill and others like it impacted their 
planning and their view of the desirability of California as an investment opportunity. Mr. Morcos said 
it was a bigger industry question on how it affected rental property owners. He said a few things 
could happen noting that rent control had shown to impact the quality of housing in the area where it 
had been enacted. He said the reason was landlords did not want to invest in their properties if they 
could not realize return on their investment. He said it artificially set a cap on rent and that of course 
affected an investment’s performance. He said where it was allowed it could incentivize apartment 
owners to convert to condominiums, which exacerbated the housing crisis even more. He said 
Greystar was a rental manager, developer and owner so those laws impacted them and signaled a 
city or state’s willingness to change the rules. He said changing rules in the middle of a process 
caused unintended consequences and caused issues with bringing housing to the Bay area. 
 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 8  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

Commissioner DeCardy asked if the 21 BMR units would be at the moderate income level. Mr. 
Morcos said those were at the low income level per the BMR requirements. Commissioner DeCardy 
referred to sheet A004D and said the view of the paseo with the adjoining property showed quite a 
drop-off. Ms. Krolewski said a guardrail would be needed on that edge about 42-inches high, 
somewhat transparent, perhaps a cable rail. She said in time that would probably be removed as 
other sites were raised. She said on that west side they also had a planting buffer about five feet 
wide with trees that would help break up that grade change. 
 
Commissioner Riggs asked why the multitude of four-bedroom units was planned. Mr. Morcos said  
next door they had 483 units with a multitude of one-bedroom and some two- and three-bedrooms. 
He said Menlo Portal had 335 units with a similar mix with the majority one-bedroom. He said given 
the significant number of units coming on line around the same time they thought this was a perfect 
opportunity to diversity the unit mix. He said upward of 40% of people were in a shared home in that 
they have a roommate or another adult that they were not in a relationship with and these four-
bedroom units could possibly satisfy a need for that type of renter. Commissioner Riggs said that 
was what he suspected and he thought it a fantastic idea and would make life affordable for a great 
number of people. 
 
Commissioner Kahle confirmed that the project could not go underground because the base 
elevation was 10 feet. He asked how much they were raising it. Mr. Morcos said two-feet for sites 
this size. He said for the site next door, Menlo Uptown, they had to raise it an additional two feet or 
four feet. Commissioner Kahle said Menlo Uptown had stacked parking and this project had self-
parking and asked what the reasoning was. Mr. Morcos said it was a matter of fitting the number of 
spaces they needed within that other project as it was higher density than this one would be. 
Commissioner Kahle asked if at some point whether stacked parking would allow the removal of one 
level of parking from this building. Mr. Morcos said they had not anticipated or looked at that. that 
and did not look at that. Mr. Manus said the footprint was so small and the maneuvering relatively 
tight so he did not think they would gain much doing that. He said also there were significant cost 
increases with a stacking system. He said when there was enough density, they were able to 
amortize stacked parking but this one was essentially half the size of the Menlo Uptown site. Mr. 
Morcos said the 14,000 square feet of commercial space required a significant amount of parking 
that was not conducive to stacked parking. 
 
Chair Barnes opened the public hearing. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
• Pamela Jones, Menlo Park, District 1, said the community amenities list was created in 2014 and 

approved in 2015. She said by the time this project was competed that amenities list was going 
to be significantly out of date. She said when these projects were complete in a couple of years 
that they would be living in an entirely different economy system than they were living in now. 
She said they probably would just be moving forward with economic recovery. She 
recommended increasing the number of affordable units at a minimum of 10%. She said in the 
past she always recommended 20 to 25%. She said they needed to begin thinking about the 
market for these apartments. She said if Facebook was finding that employees working from 
home worked than there might not be a thousand employees living in the District 1 building area. 
(Written comments were: Planning Commission and Staff, The Community Amenities List is 
based on a survey completed in 2015 and is severely out of date. I recommend the most 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 9  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

appropriate amenity is an increase of at least 10% the affordability of units. By the time these 
units are completed we will be in the middle of a significant down-turn in the economy. 
Respectfully, Pamela D Jones) 

 
Planner Meador said one of the emails received was from Pamela Jones who had just spoken. Chair 
Barnes said Ms. Jones had made her points well this evening and the email did not have to be read.  
 
Planner Meador said the next email was from Adina Levin and read it in its entirety. 
 
• Dear Planning Commissioners, Menlo Together is a group of Menlo Park and Peninsula 

residents who envision a city that is integrated and diverse, multi-generational, and 
environmentally sustainable. Following are a few comments regarding the project proposal at 
165 Jefferson Drive that you are reviewing this evening. We understand that because of SB330, 
the City of Menlo Park is limited in the scope of its discretion with regard to housing projects that 
fit the city’s General Plan and Zoning. That said, there are several open issues with regard to this 
project that relate to Menlo Together’s goals of housing affordability, sustainable transportation, 
and social equity.  
 
 Affordable housing and Community Amenities. The development is proposed to include 15% 

Below Market Rate housing units, in line with the city’s inclusionary policy. The development 
is also required to offer community amenities in line with the proposal at the Bonus level of 
development. The City Council has set a preference for the R-MU-B zoning district, the City 
Council included a preference that additional affordable housing units be provided as the 
community amenity. Menlo Park has a major need for affordable housing, and we 
recommend that the Planning Commission prioritize affordable housing for the community 
amenity. 
 

 Paseo design - walk-bike access and public space. We support the Staff report’s good 
analysis and recommendations regarding the improvements to the Paseo to connect it to the 
public open space and commercial uses, and to connect to adjacent properties as they 
redevelop in the future. These improvements would help the Paseo do a better job of 
contributing to public access to amenities for city residents and encouraging healthy active 
transportation. 
 

 Parking and Transportation Demand Management. The development is proposed to have 
158 apartments including 21 affordable homes with 138 car parking stalls, to be offered 
unbundled and 267 bike parking stalls. We used the TransForm Connect tool to analyze the 
transportation features of this project. The results of the analysis can be seen here: 
https://connect.greentrip.org/map-tool.php?p=258098 The GreenTrip analysis indicates that 
the building would generate 50% less driving and climate impact considering the affordable 
housing and unbundled parking, and with the addition of transit passes, carshare and 
bikeshare. Based on this analysis, we recommend that: 
 
o The residents should be provided with transit passes 
o The developer and city should work with SamTrans to ensure that the area has bus 

service, which can be improved in the current Reimagine SamTrans planning process 
o The developer should provide carshare and micromobility share (bike and/or scooter) 

 
Thank you for your consideration, Adina Levin, for Menlo Together, https://menlotogether.org 
 

https://connect.greentrip.org/map-tool.php?p=258098


Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 10  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

Chair Barnes closed the public hearing. 
 
Commission Comments: Commissioner Kahle noted the site was smallish at 60,000 square feet with 
a fairly dense project and maxed out as much as it could be. He asked if there were any caps built 
into the overall Menlo Park general plan that would prohibit this entire area from being maxed out in 
a similar manner. Planner Meador said they did have a maximum of residential units that were 
studied under the original ConnectMenlo Environmental Impact Report (EIR). She said she believed 
that was met with this project so any future housing projects would have to have a full EIR process. 
Ms. Prince said if a housing project went over the number of housing units studied through 
ConnectMenlo and identified in the General Plan not only would a full EIR be needed but a General 
Plan amendment as well. 
 
Commissioner Kahle asked about the background of not requiring additional parking for BMR 
density bonus projects and if the rationale were the units were closer to mass transit or an 
assumption that extra cars were not needed for BMR tenants. Planner Meador said she did not 
know the entire background for the ordinance but knew it was offered as an incentive for an 
applicant to provide additional housing. She said the BMR units required parking. She said the 
additional market rate units they were allowed for providing BMR units were exempted from the 
overall parking requirement. Commissioner Kahle asked if it was assumed that the units would be 
closer to mass transit. Planner Meador said based on the ConnectMenlo plan they were trying to 
minimize parking for these sites and encourage other TMD plan measures to reduce the overall 
number of cars in general. 
 
Commissioner Doran said the Commission was asked to discuss the appropriateness of the garage 
screening. He said there were a couple of elevations shown but he had not heard much about the 
proposed screening. Mr. Manus said along Jefferson Drive frontages there was only a small portion 
where the garage basically poked out into the paseo. He said that would become either a landscape 
element or a potential place for art. He said on the east and north they were trying to create uses 
against the garage, but where they could not that they were looking at some type of dense 
screening. He said on the east elevation it was really the flanking sides of the garage entrance 
where the garage was visible and on the north side that they were looking at putting significant 
landscape buffer against that edge. He said they would either be looking at some sort of screen, art 
activation or landscaping treatment. He said they were looking for feedback and they were trying 
everything they could to make sure the parking did not have any visible presence on any side of the 
project. 
 
Commissioner Riggs said he was concerned about the glazing along the pedestrian level 
commercial space. He said transparency was addressed by having large expanses of glass, which 
was wonderful. He noted the instance of commercial space along El Camino Real with glazing 
similarly set back from the sidewalk, which might have been anticipated as display space but ended 
up being mostly posters. He asked if they had a plan such as tenant guidelines that would activate 
the glazing. Mr. Manus said having a tenant block the windows was far from any intent they were 
proposing. Mr. Morcos said they had not thought a lot yet about who the tenants would be. He said 
his preference would be to create an indoor / outdoor floor space especially with publicly accessible 
open space at the southeast corner of the site. He said glazing was not intended to be fogged or an 
obstruction of view. 
 
Commissioner Riggs asked if they had envisioned what the commercial space could or could not be. 
Mr. Morcos said it depended on whether a portion of the space could be used toward their 
community benefit. He said that would involve Commission and community input on a proposed use. 
He said otherwise their intent was to be somewhat flexible especially with a huge shift in the market 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 11  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

now. He said a restaurant use or a retail use if those would satisfy the community amenity would be 
a big win for the project. 
 
Commissioner Riggs said the underlying code for the R-MU-B indicated that commercial space 
would be supportive of the residential units. He asked to what degree that was decided already and 
if they were separating community benefits from project and zoning requirements. Planner Meador 
said ConnectMenlo envisioned a mix of live, work, and play spaces and staff had encouraged 
developers and applicants to incorporate a balance of commercial, office and residential to achieve 
that goal. She said they thought it was beneficial for the project to incorporate commercial space 
even if it were not part of the community benefit. She said the amenities list included retail. She said 
she noted in the staff report there was some question of whether that could be used as a benefit for 
multiple projects. She said staff was still in the process of reviewing the community amenities 
appraisals and would have to look into that further. 
 
Chair Barnes said he looked at information on ConnectMenlo and found a table noting 4500 
residential units at buildout and asked if that was the correct number and whether this project would 
hit that number. Planner Meador said she misspoke somewhat when she said with this project and 
the others that they were at the cap. She said they were not at the cap for the General Plan but they 
were at the cap for what was studied in the ConnectMenlo EIR and additional proposed residential 
units would need a full EIR but she did not think they were at the cap for the General Plan yet so a 
General Plan amendment was not needed yet. Replying further to Chair Barnes, Planner Meador 
said she did not think they were at the residential unit cap for the Bayside area under the General 
Plan but she would have to research to get exact numbers. 
 
Ms. Prince said the proposed project in the EIR for ConnectMenlo studied the existing development 
potential for residential units, which was 150 units plus the proposed Bayfront area potential of 4500 
residential units. She said the 4500 residential units seen in the General Plan were the additional 
units that were studied in the EIR. 
 
Chair Barnes questioned what projects were being counted if the 4500 residential unit potential had 
been reached. Ms. Prince said Planning staff had prepared an extensive spreadsheet of all the 
projects that were included. She said she believed the Willow Village units were included. She said it 
was applications submitted that counted toward that cap. She said they could doublecheck and 
certainly get the Commission a copy of that spreadsheet. 
 
Replying to Chair Barnes, Planner Meador said when a developer provided BMR units onsite they 
could add market rate units at a 1:1 ratio. 
 
Chair Barnes asked how the applicant would conclude whether to add inclusionary BMR units or 
some other type of community amenity. Mr. Morcos said their understanding was that there was an 
appraisal process that established a dollar amount to be used for community amenities. He said they 
saw it as one list and included in that list was additional affordable units and that had a value 
associated with it. He said they were looking at what was the need of the community, what were 
most people asking for, what worked within the dollar amount that was requested and what would 
work within the project. 
 
Replying further to Chair Barnes, Mr. Morcos said they would get a value from the appraisal process 
and City staff would help them assign a value to the affordable units. He said in their project they 
might not find that the latter value aligned with the project. 
 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 12  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

Chair Barnes said he thought BMR units were currently valued at $274,000 and asked how that was 
determined. Ms. Prince said staff anticipated bringing a study through the Housing Commission and 
then Planning Commission to discuss that very thing. She said they had BAE look at how much it 
cost to produce a housing unit. She said that study also took into consideration that under the BMR 
ordinance a developer was allowed another market rate unit for every BMR unit provided. She said 
they were looking into how that played into the value of the additional. She said they should have 
more information on this in the future. 
 
Commissioner Riggs asked if the harlequin paving pattern was expected to guide pedestrians and 
bicyclists. Ms. Krolewski said that the pattern was meant to be seen from the spaces above. She 
said when it started to expand across to the other site it would start to be read a bit more. She said it 
was intended to make the space more dynamic when you were walking through it as opposed to just 
doing a straight path through there. She said the shape of it was allowing for benches and seating 
areas to develop and pauses for pedestrians walking through there. Commissioner Riggs said that it 
would need to be more than just two colors of concrete paving to read at the pedestrian scale. He 
said it needed more attention but that was understandable at this stage. He noted the public space 
at the southeast corner noting that such public space tended to be judged on whether or not they 
were visually interesting and particularly on whether they were inviting. He said it would be great if 
this space had that sense of place as well as invitation. 
 
Commissioner Riggs said the roof screen on a building could degrade the overall perception of a 
building if not handled with some consistency and design intent. He said it should be attractive on its 
own. 
 
Commissioner Riggs said regarding the paseo and publicly accessible open space in general that at 
this point they were fine. He said he did not expect the paseo to be located next to retail space when 
the paseo location was defined as code and the retail space was defined by the building use and its 
frontage. He said in terms of form and layout that they looked fine. He said they discussed the 
commercial use some and the hope for active space. He said the Commission needed to have a 
better sense of whether they would consider restaurant or retail space to be a community amenity or 
something that served the building and its occupants and was consistent with base code for mixed 
use. He said at this point he did not have an opinion either way. He said in terms of architectural 
design and materials without having a close view at the pedestrian level he thought those were 
excellent. He said in terms of building modulations that literally following the design guidelines 
whether in ConnectMenlo or the Downtown Specific Plan was actually a risk. He said he thought this 
project addressed the intent of the modulation guideline quite well. He said he could support 
modifications of the guidelines if necessary to help the architecture move forward as intended by its 
designer. He said regarding garage screening that its visibility was fairly limited and at the paseo for 
the most part and part of the north side he thought the initial approach looked workable. He said it 
was challenging to have two or three levels on grade and elevated a couple of feet and there were 
downsides to having enclosed above grade parking. He said he thought the architects were 
approaching it well. He said he had no comments on density. He said regarding the overall approach 
that he thought it was quite successful. 
 
Commissioner DeCardy said regarding overall approach that he too thought this would be a 
successful building. He said regarding the paseo and publicly accessible open space he would love 
the paseo to meet the definition of what he thought a paseo was, which was to be inviting of a 
leisurely stroll. He encouraged developing something that people would want to walk the length of 
the building and then turn and go somewhere else. He said he did not have an opinion on the 
commercial use and that they really needed to listen to the needs of the community if possible. He 
said regarding community amenity he agreed with comments from the public speakers that there 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 13  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

was such a need for affordable housing and encouraged looking at that to see if that would work for 
the developer to do. He said he liked all he had seen of the architectural design, materials, and 
building modulations. He said related to the issue with the building modulations that if they could 
address those to fit with what the City wanted to see that would be great and if not, they could to 
request changes, which he would be open to. He said he thought the garage screening was nicely 
discussed. He said regarding parking and TDM that he really appreciated the Menlo Together 
comments. He said where they were going with future transportation that they would need less 
parking. He said he was in favor of building for that future as it provided incentive for better public 
transportation and more people relying on it and getting a favorable feedback loop. He said that a 
robust TDM program was needed. 
 
Commissioner Kahle said adding 1,100 units into the area was great. He said adding BMR units was 
a great factor and if more could be added that would be a better benefit. He said on the paseo he 
agreed that it could better integrate with the common open space. He said on the site plan the 
common space appeared adjacent to the paseo. He said looking at the rendering there was a lot of 
landscaping there and it was not clear if there was a direct connection to there. He said in general 
the paseo was going in the right direction but was better at its southeast corner than at the north end 
with a seven-story building adjacent to it. He said an offset there would help. He said the parking 
and the visibility were fine. He said on the commercial use that they were asked to weigh in on 
whether it was an important component. He said absolutely it was an important component to the 
project. He said having some commercial use there would reduce traffic and have more 
convenience. He said he would like to see whatever produced the greatest benefit for the immediate 
area whether that was pharmacy, retail, or food service, something that benefitted all the Greystar 
projects going in plus the Tide Academy and other places in the area that could use those services. 
He said he was less inclined to do a nonprofit in that area as he thought something that would serve 
the general area was much more useful. He said regarding the architecture he thought the 
articulation and modulation were very good and would work well with the other two Greystar 
projects. He said they were asked about the relief for the additional average height of four feet and 
that was a reasonable relief especially since the total overall height was 10 feet under the maximum 
allowed. He said regarding the general layout that the podium level with the swimming pool was on 
the eastside of the project which worked well with the paseo but he thought in the afternoon the 
whole area would be in shadow and its use would suffer for that. He said he would like to see 
attention paid to the solar access to that interior courtyard. He said overall it was a great project. 
 
Commissioner Tate said she also liked the project but again as with other Greystar projects she 
thought there should be more BMR units. She said in this instance there would be community 
amenity and she said BMR units were a definite community amenity. She said she did not think 
having commercial space onsite was the intent when community amenity was written into 
ConnectMenlo. She said at that point it was what would serve the Belle Haven community and not 
the community that was blossoming in that area. She said a restaurant or mini-market there would 
really only serve the people who lived there. She said the Commission had discussed that on 
another project and had come to that conclusion. She said she supported all of Menlo Together’s 
comments. 
 
Commissioner Doran said the paseo could work better and it risked being dead space. He said if the 
commercial use was retail, he thought it would be great to locate some of it along the paseo. He said 
regarding what types of commercial use he was content to allow market forces decide that. He said 
if the need was to serve people in the building, he thought that was fine. He said regarding 
community amenity he preferred more BMR units as opposed to any retail or eating establishments. 
He said regarding architecture, design, materials and building modulations that he had no 
objections. He said regarding garage screening that he did not have enough information on whether 



Planning Commission Approved Minutes - April 20, 2020  
Page 14  

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org  

it was appropriate or not. He said the proposed density was appropriate to the site. He said he 
thought the overall approach was good and the project was really helping to alleviate the housing 
shortage in Menlo Park. 
 
Chair Barnes said regarding community amenity he did not think that restaurant and tenant serving 
amenities were in the spirit of community amenities. He said among the list of retail and among the 
list of restaurants and coffee shops he would look very specifically for those that he could consider 
to be of greater good to the community as opposed to the 1100 Greystar units in the area. He said 
regarding the commercial use that he did not have an opinion if it was not to be a community 
amenity as then it should be whatever was needed to make the development successful. He said 
daycare was a strong public serving commercial use. He said he was fine with the average height 
going to what was proposed. He said he was fine with the reduction in parking associated with it. He 
said Greystar would have critical mass in the area to implement TDM measures. He said none of the 
trees shown on the landscape plan were on the City’s list of heritage trees. 
 
Commissioner Tate said the idea of a daycare for the commercial space was a great idea. 
 

H. Informational Items 
 
H1. Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule 

• Regular Meeting: May 4, 2020 
 

Planner Sandmeier said at the May 4 meeting that the Transportation Division would provide 
updates to the Transportation Impact Analysis guidelines and then take those to the City Council for 
approval. She said they were being updated to match current state laws and the California 
Environmental Quality Act.  
 
Commissioner Riggs asked whether a meeting would be held on May 11. Planner Sandmeier said 
the City Council at its April 21 meeting would get an update on the Belle Haven Community Center 
and Library project and staff would ask for Council direction on whether the Planning Commission 
should meet May 11 for that project. 
 
• Regular Meeting: May 18, 2020 
• Regular Meeting: June 8, 2020 

 
I.  Adjournment  
  
 Chair Barnes adjourned the meeting at 9:35 p.m. 
 
 Staff Liaison: Corinna Sandmeier, Senior Planner 
 
 Recording Secretary: Brenda Bennett 
 
 Approved by the Planning Commission on May 18, 2020 



MENLO FLATS

A-00012.18.2019

COVER PAGE
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

MENLO FLATS
MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING PROJECT

165 JEFFERSON STREET,
MENLO PARK, CA

SUBMITTAL FOR STUDY SESSION REVIEW
DECEMBER 18, 2019

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-00112.18.2019

URBAN CONTEXT
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Project highlights

Affordability 21 units to be below market rate
BMR units located onsite, equitably distributed

Open space ~5,487 SF publicly accessible open space (exceeds
requirement of 3,755 SF minimum)

Neighborhood benefit ~14,422 SF of ground floor street frontage commercial

Connectivity
Paseo open space designed to connect site to walking and
biking routes
232 bicycle parking spaces onsite

Environmental
LEED Gold design standard and 100% renewable energy
EV pre-wiring for 100% required parking and EV chargers
for 15% of required parking

Project information

Site area: 1.38 acres / 60,112 SF
Public open space: 5,487 SF (Paseo + Plaza)

Project Info
Multifamily units: 158 units (includes 21 proposed BMR units
located onsite)
Commercial: 14,422 SF (first 2 levels of Jefferson Dr. frontage)
Vehicular parking: 176 (138 residential + 38 commercial)
Bicycle parking: 232 (208 long-term + 24 short-term)



N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-004b12.18.2019

VIEW
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

MENLO FLATS

A-004a12.18.2019

VIEW
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-004c12.18.2019

VIEW
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-004d12.18.2019

VIEW
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA



1
A-013b

P
A 

S 
E

O

Parking layout to be determined
(Parking level P0)

J E F F E R S O N     D R I V EA B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

10
' - 

0"
62

' - 
0"

73
' - 

0"
59

' - 
0"

32' - 0" 74' - 6" 95' - 0" 40' - 6" 25' - 0"

E

10' Wide 
Paseo section 
with 5' setback

22
5' 

- 0
"

267' - 0"

LOADING 
DOCK BIKE PARKING

5' - 0"

Ramp Up

10
9' 

- 1
1 3

/4"

20' - 0"

FUTURE PASEO & 
SETBACK BY 
NEIGHBORING 
PROPERTY (NIC)

15' - 0"

21
' - 

0"

Trash 
Collection 

Room

P
A 

S 
E

O 
in

Ad
jac

en
t

Pr
op

er
ty 

(N
.I.C

)

NON - RESIDENTIAL

Outdoor Open 
Space - at 
sidewalk/ 
paseo elevation

Proposed connection of the Project Fire Service lane per 
discussion with Menlo Fire to the Menlo Uptown 
Townhome Site Fire Lane separated by a rolled curb.

Transformer Room

Trash 
Enclosure 

(NIC)
70' - 4" 35' - 6"

OUTDOOR PLAZA

MAIL/ PACKAGE

10
' - 

0"
5' 

- 0
"

105' - 10"

5' - 0"
10' - 0"

F

Rolled Curb (Access 
for FD, trash 
management, loading 
and Utility Only)

BI
KE

 P
AR

KI
NG

5' - 0"

43
' - 

8"
9' 

- 0
"

31
' - 

4"

Trash Bin Room
Rolled Curb (Access 
for FD, trash 
management, loading 
and Utility Only)

Bike Parking/ 
Seating

Pedestrian 
Access Ramp

LOBBY / LEASING

1
A-013a

Service Area Landscape, 
Not included in the Open 
Space Calculation

Electrical Room

Transformer Room

Electrical Room

Electrical 
Room

Ut
ilit

y R
oo

m

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-00512.18.2019

PLAN LEVEL 01 AND PARKING LEVEL P0
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL 1

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level 01 0.0 SF 2,178.4 SF 0.0 SF 1,618.5 SF 3,563.4 SF 7,360.3 SF 6,509.2 SF 0.0 SF 412.5 SF 25,063.9 SF 39,345.9 SF 5,487.0 SF
Grand total 0.0 SF 2,178.4 SF 0.0 SF 1,618.5 SF 3,563.4 SF 7,360.3 SF 6,509.2 SF 0.0 SF 412.5 SF 25,063.9 SF 39,345.9 SF 5,487.0 SF

1
A-013b

A B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

E

(Parking Level P1)

Electrical and 
Transformer 

Rooms Below

Loading 
Dock Below

Lobby/ Non-
Residential space 

below

Non-Residential 
space below

F

1
A-013a

Core 
connection 

below

Stair continues 
down to exit 
discharge below  -
No access to 
Parking Level P1 

Bike 
Storage 
below

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-00612.18.2019

PARKING LEVEL P1
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL P1

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level P1 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 770.8 SF 1,388.3 SF 0.0 SF 2,159.1 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 85.2 SF 26,166.5 SF 28,410.8 SF 0.0 SF
Grand total 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 770.8 SF 1,388.3 SF 0.0 SF 2,159.1 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 85.2 SF 26,166.5 SF 28,410.8 SF 0.0 SF

1
A-013b

(Parking Level P2)

A B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

10
' - 

0"
62

' - 
0"

73
' - 

0"
59

' - 
0"

21
' - 

0"

32' - 0" 74' - 6" 95' - 0" 40' - 6" 10' - 0" 15' - 0"

E

(POOL SUNKEN BELOW 
THE PODIUM FLOOR 

ABOVE)

NON - RESIDENTIAL 

Ramp dn

5' 
- 0

"

RESIDENTIAL 
AMENITIES

F

20
' - 

0"

1
A-013a

LEDGE AT LEVEL P1 BELOW

(SERVES THE POOL)

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-00712.18.2019

PLAN LEVEL 02 AND PARKING LEVEL P2
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL 2

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level 02 0.0 SF 2,504.8 SF 1,559.8 SF 2,301.6 SF 2,151.5 SF 8,517.6 SF 7,913.1 SF 0.0 SF 81.9 SF 25,357.2 SF 41,869.8 SF 0.0 SF
Grand total 0.0 SF 2,504.8 SF 1,559.8 SF 2,301.6 SF 2,151.5 SF 8,517.6 SF 7,913.1 SF 0.0 SF 81.9 SF 25,357.2 SF 41,869.8 SF 0.0 SF

1
A-013b

A B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

10
' - 

0"
62

' - 
0"

73
' - 

0"
59

' - 
0"

21
' - 

0"

32' - 0" 74' - 6" 95' - 0" 40' - 6" 10' - 0" 15' - 0"

E

COMMON TERRACE POOL

Res. 
Services

54' - 2" 20' - 4" 45' - 0" 5' - 0"

Trash Chute

F

5' 
- 0

" PRIVATE TERRACE

PR
IV

AT
E 

TE
RR

AC
E

PRIVATE TERRACE

1
A-013a

LEDGE AT LEVEL P1 BELOW

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-00812.18.2019

PLAN LEVEL 03
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL 3

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level 03 22,320.8 SF 1,181.3 SF 380.2 SF 4,616.9 SF 484.0 SF 28,983.2 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,062.4 SF 12,841.7 SF
Grand total 22,320.8 SF 1,181.3 SF 380.2 SF 4,616.9 SF 484.0 SF 28,983.2 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,062.4 SF 12,841.7 SF



1
A-013b

A B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

10
' - 

0"
62

' - 
0"

73
' - 

0"
59

' - 
0"

21
' - 

0"

32' - 0" 54' - 2" 20' - 4" 95' - 0" 40' - 6" 10' - 0" 15' - 0"

E

TERRACE BELOW AT 
LEVEL 3

Res. 
Services

Trash Chute

TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

POOL

F

9' 
- 0

"

1
A-013a

LEDGE AT LEVEL P1 BELOW TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

TE
RR

AC
E 

BE
LO

W
 A

T 
LE

VE
L 3

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-00912.18.2019

PLAN LEVEL 04 (TYP. 04 & 05)
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL 5

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level 05 24,097.4 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 4,085.0 SF 581.7 SF 29,144.3 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,223.5 SF 0.0 SF
Grand total 24,097.4 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 4,085.0 SF 581.7 SF 29,144.3 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,223.5 SF 0.0 SF

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL 4

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level 04 24,097.4 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 4,085.0 SF 581.7 SF 29,144.3 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,223.5 SF 0.0 SF
Grand total 24,097.4 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 4,085.0 SF 581.7 SF 29,144.3 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,223.5 SF 0.0 SF

1
A-013b

A B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

10
' - 

0"
62

' - 
0"

73
' - 

0"
59

' - 
0"

21
' - 

0"

32' - 0" 74' - 6" 95' - 0" 65' - 6"

E

Res. 
Services

Trash Chute

TERRACE BELOW 
AT LEVEL 3

TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

F

TE
RR

AC
E 

BE
LO

W
 A

T 
LE

VE
L 

3

TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

1
A-013a

LEDGE AT LEVEL P1 BELOW

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-01012.18.2019

PLAN LEVEL 06 (ROOF TERRACE)
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL 6

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level 06 (Roof Terrace) 18,661.9 SF 2,879.4 SF 380.2 SF 3,566.0 SF 435.1 SF 25,922.6 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 26,001.8 SF 3,225.0 SF
Grand total 18,661.9 SF 2,879.4 SF 380.2 SF 3,566.0 SF 435.1 SF 25,922.6 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 26,001.8 SF 3,225.0 SF

1
A-013b

A B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

10
' - 

0"
62

' - 
0"

73
' - 

0"
59

' - 
0"

21
' - 

0"

32' - 0" 74' - 6" 95' - 0" 65' - 6"

E

RESIDENTIAL 
AMENITIES 

BELOW

Res. 
Services

Trash Chute

TERRACE BELOW 
AT LEVEL 6

TERRACE BELOW 
AT LEVEL 3

TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

F

Res. 
Services

1
A-013a

LEDGE AT LEVEL P1 BELOW TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

TE
RR

AC
E 

BE
LO

W
 A

T 
LE

VE
L 3

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-01112.18.2019

PLAN LEVEL 07
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY - LEVEL 7

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)
RESID. AMENITIES

(FAR)
RESID SERVICES/
STORAGE (FAR)

RESID. COMMON
(FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)
NON-RESIDENTIAL

GSF (FAR)

RESID
COMMON
(NOT INCL.

IN FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING GSF
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)
TOTAL BLDG

GSF

PROJECT OPEN
SPACE (NOT INCL.

IN FAR)

Level 07 18,664.2 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 3,324.3 SF 435.1 SF 22,803.8 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 22,883 SF 0.0 SF
Grand total 18,664.2 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 3,324.3 SF 435.1 SF 22,803.8 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 22,883 SF 0.0 SF

Street Level
-1' - 8 1/2"

Level 02
20' - 0"

Level 03
31' - 3"

Level 04
41' - 6"

Level 05
51' - 9"

Level 06 (Roof Terrace)
62' - 9"

Level 07
73' - 0"

Level 01
3' - 8 3/4"

ABCDG E

Level 08 (Roof)
84' - 11"

Level P1
13' - 2 3/4"

Average Natural Grade
0' - 0"

Level P2
22' - 2 3/4"

Level P0 (BFE)
2' - 8 3/4"

F

10
' - 

3"

11
' - 

0"

10
' - 

3"

10
' - 

3"
9' 

- 0
 1/

4"
9' 

- 0
"

9' 
- 6

"

5' 
- 5

 1/
4"

BOH/ Mech (Pool)

Parking P1

Parking P0

Parking P2

Residential Units
Residential Units Beyond

32' - 0"

Stair Enclosure

Elevator Enclosure

11
' - 

11
"

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential UnitsTerrace at Podium w/ Pool

Double Height 
Residential Amenity 

Residential Amenity 

Property Line

Vehicular Access/ Fire 
Service Lane10' - 0"

20
' - 

0"

10
' - 

0"

4' 
- 0

"

0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-013a12.18.2019

BUILDING SECTIONS
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

1" = 10'-0"1 EAST WEST BUILDING SECTION

0 5' 10'



Street Level
-1' - 8 1/2"

Level 02
20' - 0"

Level 03
31' - 3"

Level 04
41' - 6"

Level 05
51' - 9"

Level 06 (Roof Terrace)
62' - 9"

Level 07
73' - 0"

10
' - 

3"

11
' - 

0"

10
' - 

3"

10
' - 

3"
9' 

- 0
 1/

4"
9' 

- 0
"

9' 
- 6

"

5' 
- 5

 1/
4"

Level 01
3' - 8 3/4"

B C D G

PASEO

BOH/ Mech (Pool)

Parking P1

Parking P0

Parking P2

Residential Units

Residential 
Units Beyond

E

Level 08 (Roof)
84' - 11"

15' - 0"

Stair 
EnclosureElevator Enclosure

11
' - 

11
"

Level P1
13' - 2 3/4"

Average Natural Grade
0' - 0"

Level P2
22' - 2 3/4"

Level P0 (BFE)
2' - 8 3/4"

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units

Residential Units
Terrace at Podium w/ Pool

F
Residential Units 
Along street

20
' - 

0"

4' 
- 0

" 10
' - 

0"
0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-013b12.18.2019

BUILDING SECTIONS
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

0 5' 10'

UPUPUPUP

Municipal Code 16.45120 (4) - Open Space:
All development in the Residential-Mixed Use district shall provide a minimum amount of open space equal to 25% 
of the total lot area, with a minimum amount of publicly accessible open space equal to 25% of the total required 
open space area.

One hundred (100) square feet of open space per unit shall be created as common open space. In the case of a 
mix of private and common open space, such common open space shall be provided at a ratio equal to one and 
one-quarter (1.25) square feet for each one (1) square foot of private open space that is not provided.

Project Compliance - Open Space:
21,553.7 SF of Open Space provided by design 
( 35.9% of Total Site Area)

Includes:
Public Open Space:     5,487.0 SF
Private & Common Open Space: 16,066.7 SF

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE     5,487.0 SF

PRIVATE OPEN SPACE     2,970.2 SF

COMMON OPEN SPACE 13,096.5 SF

Open Space Summary by Levels:
Refer to Sheet A-002a for more detailed open space calculation 
and open space provisions for Residential Units

Project Requirements - Open Space:

25% of the Total Site Area (60,075 SF) = 15,018.8 SF Open Space Required

25% of Required Open Space (15,018.8 SF) =   3,754.7 SF  Public Open Space Required

80 SF of Private Open Space per dwelling unit = 138 Units x 80 SF = 11,040 SF Private Open Space

NOTE:  The 20 Bonus Density units are not included in the Open Space requirement calculation.

P
A 

S 
E

O

Parking layout to be determined
(Parking level P0)

J E F F E R S O N     D R I V E

LOADING 
DOCK BIKE PARKING

Ramp Up

Trash 
Collection 

Room

P
A 

S 
E

O 
in

Ad
jac

en
t P

ro
pe

rty
 (N

.I.C
)

NON - RESIDENTIAL

Electrical and 
Transformer Rooms

OUTDOOR PLAZA

MAIL/ PACKAGE

BIKE PARKING

Trash Bin Room

LOBBY / LEASING

Service Area Landscape, 
Not included in the Open 
Space Calculation

COMMON TERRACE POOL

Res. 
Services

Trash Chute

PRIVATE TERRACE

PR
IV

AT
E 

TE
RR

AC
E

PRIVATE TERRACE

Res. 
Services

Trash Chute

TERRACE BELOW 
AT LEVEL 3

TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

TE
RR

AC
E 

BE
LO

W
 A

T 
LE

VE
L 

3

TERRACE BELOW AT LEVEL 3

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-014a12.18.2019

RESIDENTIAL ZONING COMPLIANCE -
OPEN SPACE165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - OPEN SPACE AREA SUMMARY

Level

RESID. UNITS OPEN
SPACE_COMMON
(NOT INCL. IN FAR)

RESID. UNITS OPEN
SPACE_PRIVATE

(NOT INCL. IN FAR)

RESID. UNITS OPEN
SPACE_TOTAL (NOT

INCL. IN FAR)

PUBLIC OPEN
SPACE_PASEO

(NOT INCL. IN FAR)

PUBLIC OPEN
SPACE_PLAZA

LANDSCAPE (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PUBLIC OPEN
SPACE_PASEO AND
PLAZA LANDSCAPE
(NOT INCL. IN FAR)

TOTAL PROJECT OPEN SPACE (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

Level 08 (Roof) 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 07 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 06 (Roof Terrace) 3,225.0 SF 0.0 SF 3,225.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 3,225.0 SF
Level 05 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 04 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 03 9,871.5 SF 2,970.2 SF 12,841.7 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 12,841.7 SF
Level 02 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level P1 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 01 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 3,375.0 SF 2,112.0 SF 5,487.0 SF 5,487.0 SF
Grand total 13,096.5 SF 2,970.2 SF 16,066.7 SF 3,375.0 SF 2,112.0 SF 5,487.0 SF 21,553.7 SF

1" = 40'-0"1 LEVEL 01 - OPEN SPACE
1" = 40'-0"2 LEVEL 03 - OPEN SPACE

1" = 40'-0"3 LEVEL 06 - OPEN SPACE

MENLO FLATS

A-004a12.18.2019

VIEW
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA



THANK YOU

Appendix

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-002a12.18.2019

PROJECT DATA SUMMARY
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

FLOOR AREA S MMAR  (RES DENT AL) 

MAX.  ALLOWED RESIDENTIAL FLOOR AREA = 135,253.8 SF*
(225% of SITE AREA = 1.38 ACRES X 43560 X 2.25)

*MAX. ALLOWED WITH BMR DENSITY & FAR BONUS = 135, 253.8+19,600**= 154,853.8 SF

MULTIFAMILY GSF PROVIDED = 154,835.2 SF            

HOUSING PROJECT    SITE AREA  1.38 Acres (60,075 SF)

FLOOR AREA SUMMARY (NON-RESIDENTIAL)

MAX.  ALLOWED NON-RESIDENTIAL FLOOR AREA = 15,018.75 SF
(25% of SITE AREA = 1.38 ACRES X 43560 X 0.25)

NON-RESIDENTIAL GSF PROVIDED = 14,422.3SF

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - AREA SUMMARY

Level
RESID. UNITS

(FAR)

RESID.
AMENITIES

(FAR)

RESID
SERVICES/
STORAGE

(FAR)
RESID.

COMMON (FAR)

RESID.
UTILITIES

(FAR)
RESID. GSF

(FAR)

NON-RESIDEN
TIAL GSF

(FAR)
UTILITIES (NOT
INCL. IN FAR)

PARKING
GSF (NOT

INCL. IN FAR) TOTAL BLDG GSF

Level 08 (Roof) 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 799.9 SF 0.0 SF 799.9 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 799.9 SF
Level 07 18,664.2 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 3,324.3 SF 435.1 SF 22,803.8 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 22,883 SF
Level 06 (Roof Terrace) 18,661.9 SF 2,879.4 SF 380.2 SF 3,566.0 SF 435.1 SF 25,922.6 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 26,001.8 SF
Level 05 24,097.4 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 4,085.0 SF 581.7 SF 29,144.3 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,223.5 SF
Level 04 24,097.4 SF 0.0 SF 380.2 SF 4,085.0 SF 581.7 SF 29,144.3 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,223.5 SF
Level 03 22,320.8 SF 1,181.3 SF 380.2 SF 4,616.9 SF 484.0 SF 28,983.2 SF 0.0 SF 79.2 SF 0.0 SF 29,062.4 SF
Level 02 0.0 SF 2,504.8 SF 1,559.8 SF 2,301.6 SF 2,151.5 SF 8,517.6 SF 7,913.1 SF 81.9 SF 25,357.2 SF 41,869.8 SF
Level P1 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 770.8 SF 1,388.3 SF 0.0 SF 2,159.1 SF 0.0 SF 85.2 SF 26,166.5 SF 28,410.8 SF
Level 01 0.0 SF 2,178.4 SF 0.0 SF 1,618.5 SF 3,563.4 SF 7,360.3 SF 6,509.2 SF 412.5 SF 25,063.9 SF 39,345.9 SF
Grand total 107,841.8 SF 8,743.8 SF 4,231.7 SF 25,785.4 SF 8,232.4 SF 154,835.2 SF 14,422.3 SF 975.5 SF 76,587.6 SF 246,820.5 SF

TRUE 
NORTH PROJECT 

NORTH

** BMR DENSITY AND FAR BONUS CALCULATION

AT 100 UNITS/ ACRE
1.38 ACRE SITE = 138 UNITS

DENSITY BONUS: 15% BELOW MARKET RATE UNITS
138 * 15% = 20.7 (i.e., ~20 UNITS)

THE DESIGN CURRENTLY PROVIDES 158 UNITS (138+20) AND HAS CORRESPONDING 
INCREASE IN FAR.

FAR MAX. SF FOR 138 RESIDENTIAL UNITS = 135,253.8 SF
FAR MAX. SF PER RESIDENTIAL UNIT = 135,253.8/ 138 = 980.1 SF

AT 980SF PER UNIT, BONUS MAX. FAR FOR 20 UNITS ADDED IS 19,600 SF.

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - UNIT SUMMARY - STUDIO & 4BR
Level #STUDIOS #4BR # UNITS

Level 07 18 8 26
Level 06 (Roof Terrace) 18 8 26
Level 05 26 10 36
Level 04 26 10 36
Level 03 25 9 34
Grand total 113 45 158

UNIT      COUNT      SUMMARY       -       STUDIOS     AND      4  - BEDROOM    UNITS UNIT SUMMARY 

MAXIMUM ALLOWED UNITS = 100 UNITS/ ACRE +15% BMR

1.38 ACRE SITE = 138 UNITS
15% UNITS BELOW MARKET RATE UNITS = 138 * 15% = 20.7 (i.e., ~20 ADDITIONAL UNITS)

TOTAL UNITS PROVIDED INCLUDING BMR UNITS = 158

NOTES :
1. TOTAL BUILDING GSF INCLUDES ALL ENCLOSED BUILT AREAS (INCLUDED IN FAR AND NOT INCLUDED IN FAR) FOR RESIDENTIAL AND NON-RESIDENTIAL SPACES.
2. TOTAL RESIDENTIAL GSF INCLUDES ALL RESIDENTIAL AREAS INCLUDED IN FAR.
3. UTILITIES (NOT INCL. IN FAR) ARE SPACES THAT ARE ALLOCATED FOR TRASH ENCLOSURE AND MECHANICAL SHAFT OPENINGS.
4. TOTAL FAR IS INCLUSIVE OF THE EXTERIOR WALLS.

UNIT SUMMARY

FLOOR AREA SUMMARY

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-002b12.18.2019

PROJECT DATA SUMMARY
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

PARKING SUMMARY

RESIDENTIAL - PARKING REQUIREMENTS & PROVISIONS

REQUIRED PROPOSED

Vehicular 
Parking for
138 units

1 - 1.5 Spaces/ Unit
Min. Parking: 138 Vehicular spaces
Max. Parking: 207 Vehicular Spaces

138
(Parking Ratio 1 Space/ Unit)

Bike Parking 1.5 Long Term Spaces/ Unit Space/ Unit
Additional 10% Short Term Spaces

Min. Bike Parking: 
207 Long Term and 21 Short Term

207 Long Term Spaces in Level 1 
Bike Parking Room off the Paseo 

21 Short Term spaces at Entry and 
Paseo

NON-RESIDENTIAL/ RETAIL - PARKING REQUIREMENTS & PROVISIONS

REQUIRED PROPOSED

Vehicular 
Parking

2.5 - 3.3 Spaces/ 1000 sf

Min. Vehicular Parking: 38
Max. Vehicular Parking: 50

38
(Parking Ratio 2.5 Space/ 1000 sf)

Bike Parking 1 Space/ 5000 sf i.e, 3 Spaces

Min. Bike Parking:
(20% Long Term (1 Space))
(80% Short Term (3 Spaces))

1 Long Term Space in Level 1 Parking 
Garage.
3 Short Term Spaces at Entry and Paseo.

SITE AREA (Residential Housing Units and Non-residential ) 60,075 SF

12,704.0

62.75

397,000.0

C. Roof Terrace at 62'-9" - Level 6

D. Podium at 31'-3" - Level 3

Built Area (SF) Height (FT) Area * Height

3,225.0

31.25

202,368.8

Average Height (FT)

84.92A. Building Roof at 84'-11" - Level 8 (Roof) 25,753.3 2,186,970.2

AVERAGE BUILDING HEIGHT = 66.5' (Allowed Max. is 62.5' Average Height + Allowance for 15% BMR)

NOTE: BUILDING HEIGHTS ARE TO BE MEASURED FROM AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE. REFER SHEET A-109 FOR 
LEVEL HEIGHTS. RESIDENTIAL ROOF CORE AREA IS NOT INCLUDED IN THE BUILDING HEIGHT CALCULATIONS. THE 
RESIDENTIAL ROOF IS FOR MAINTENANCE ACCESS ONLY. ROOF HEIGHT CALCULATION DOES NOT INCLUDE 
PARAPET HEIGHTS.

REFER SHEET A-108 PLAN LEVEL 08 (R00F) FOR AREA CALLOUTS.

73.00B. Roof at 73'-0" - Level 7 239.4 17,476.2

2,807,812.0TOTAL 42,223.8 66.5

302.1 3,996.8E. Ledge at 13'-2.75" - Level P1 13.23

RESIDENTIAL & NON-RESIDENTIAL/ RETAIL PROJECT SITE AREA = 60,075 SF (Refer to sheet C series for Parcel Information)
REQUIRED (Min.%) REQUIRED (SF) OPEN SPACE PROVIDED (SF)

SITE AREA OPEN SPACE 25% of Site Area 15,018.8 21,553.7 SF (i.e., 35.9% of Site Area)

(3,375 sf Portion of Paseo located on the projetct site + 2,112 sf  Plaza + 
+ L3 Common Podium Terrace  9,871.5 sf + L3 Private Terrace 2,970.2sf 
+ 3,225.0sf L6 Terrace ) 

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE 25% of Min. Open Space 3,754.7 5,487 SF (i.e., 36.5% of Min. Open Space requirement)

(3,375sf Portion of Paseo located on the projetct site & 2,112 sf Plaza 
Landscape)

RESIDENTIAL PRIVATE Residential Private Open Space Required (80sf/ Unit) =  11,040.0 SF
OPEN SPACE Residential Private Open Space Provided =      2,970.2 SF

Residential Private Open Space Not Provided =   8,069.8 SF

TOTAL RESI. UNITS = 138 Residential Common Open Space for Private Open Space Not Provided
(Note that the 20 BMR bonus =   8,069.8 SF x 1.25
units are excluded in this = 10,087.3 SF
calculation)   Residential Common Open Space Provided = 13,096.5 SF 

(L3 Common Podium Terrace+L6 Terrace is > than required 10,087.3SF)

OPEN SPACE SUMMARY - PROJECT SITE (Refer sheet A-014a for Zoning Compliance - Open Space Diagrams and Calculations)

Note: The 100sf common space/ unit for the 20 BMR units if required will add an additional 2000sf to the common open space requirement. 

Area Schedule (UNIT TYPE AREAS) - OPEN SPACE AREA SUMMARY

Level

RESID.
UNITS OPEN
SPACE_COM

MON (NOT
INCL. IN

FAR)

RESID. UNITS
OPEN

SPACE_PRIVATE
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)

RESID. UNITS
OPEN

SPACE_TOTAL
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)

PUBLIC OPEN
SPACE_PASEO
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)

PUBLIC OPEN
SPACE_PLAZA
LANDSCAPE
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)

PUBLIC OPEN
SPACE_PASEO

AND PLAZA
LANDSCAPE
(NOT INCL. IN

FAR)

TOTAL
PROJECT

OPEN
SPACE (NOT

INCL. IN
FAR)

Level 08 (Roof) 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 07 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 06 (Roof
Terrace)

3,225.0 SF 0.0 SF 3,225.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 3,225.0 SF

Level 05 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 04 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 03 9,871.5 SF 2,970.2 SF 12,841.7 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 12,841.7 SF
Level 02 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level P1 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF
Level 01 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 0.0 SF 3,375.0 SF 2,112.0 SF 5,487.0 SF 5,487.0 SF
Grand total 13,096.5 SF 2,970.2 SF 16,066.7 SF 3,375.0 SF 2,112.0 SF 5,487.0 SF 21,553.7 SF

OPEN SPACE SUMMARY

NOTES :
1. OPEN SPACES ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THE FAR CALCULATIONS.
2. TOTAL PROJECT OPEN SPACE INCLUDES BOTH RESIDENTIAL UNITS OPEN SPACES AND THE PUBLIC OPEN SPACE.
3. REFER SHEET A-014a FOR OPEN SPACE COMPLIANCE DIAGRAMS.

AVERAGE BUILDING HEIGHT SUMMARY

EV & ADA PARKING REQUIREMENTS & PROVISIONS

EV spaces:
Residential: 15% (21) installed + 100% (176) for future
Retail: 10% (4) installed + 25% (10) for future

(Note: 

ADA spaces
Residential: 3 ADA spaces if parking spaces are assigned (7 ADA spaces if not 
assigned) + 1 EV space with 8’ side aisle

* Residential guest spaces are not required by code.

Retail: 2 ADA spaces + 1 EV ADA space (Please note that 2 EV ADA spaces 
will be required in the future, once all future EVs are installed) 

Vehicular Parking for
20 additional units

1 - 1.5 Spaces/ Unit
Min. Parking: 20 Vehicular spaces
Max. Parking: 30 Vehicular Spaces

The BMR bonus units are not proposed 
to have additional parking per the City’s 
BMR bonus program

NOTE: All spaces are self-parked in 3 parking levels.



UP

16
' - 

3"
SE

TB
AC

K
25

' - 
0"

BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE

Municipal Code 16.45.120 (1) -
Build-to Area Requirement:
Minimum 60% of building frontage at the 
ground floor, as a percentage of the 
street frontage length, must be located 
within the area of the lot between the 
minimum (0') and maximum (25') setback 
lines parallel to the street.

Project Compliance:
The building frontage is completely 
located between the minimum and 
maximum setback lines.

Portion of the building frontage located 
between the minimum and maximum 
setback lines

Ground Level Height

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-014b12.18.2019

RESIDENTIAL ZONING COMPLIANCE -
RELATIONSHIP TO THE STREET165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

JEFFERSON ELEVATION

JEFFERSON FRONTAGE GROUND FLOOR PLAN

31
' - 

3"

164' - 5"54' - 1"

218' - 6"

Municipal Code 16.45120 (2) -
Minimum Stepback:
10' for a minimum of 75% of the building 
face along public streets for the building’s 
upper stories. A maximum of 25% of the 
building face along public streets may be 
excepted from this standard in order to 
provide architectural variation.

Project Compliance:
Building steps back at least 10' for 75% 
of the building face on the upper stories

Stepped back portion of the building

Base Height - Above Average Natural 
Grade

10
' - 

0"

Municipal Code 16.45120 (2) -
Building Projections:
Maximum 6’ projection, such as 
balconies or windows, from the required 
stepback for portions of the building 
above the ground floor.

Project Compliance:
No building projections

Building projection beyond required 
stepback

Ground level height

16
' - 

3"

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-014c12.18.2019

RESIDENTIAL ZONING COMPIANCE -
BUILDING MASS & SCALE165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

JEFFERSON ELEVATION100% BUILDING FACE (UPPER STORIES):
EXEMPT BUILDING FACE:
ELIGIBLE BUILDING FACE:
REQUIRED STEPBACK FACE:

STEPBACK BUILDING FACE PROVIDED:

8,427 SF
8,427 SF x 25% = 2,107 SF
8,427 SF  - 2,107 SF = 6,320 SF
6,320 SF x 75% = 4,740 SF

5,236 SF
5,236 SF  > 4,740 SF COMPLIES

JEFFERSON FRONTAGE UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

JEFFERSON ELEVATION

50'-0". 40' - 3" 83' - 5"

177' - 8"

Municipal Code 16.45120 (2) -
Major Building Modulations:
Minimum one recess of 15’ wide by 10’
deep per 200’ of façade length facing 
publicly accessible spaces (streets, open 
space, and paseos) applicable from the 
ground level to the top of the buildings' 
base height.

Project Compliance:
At least one major building recess 
provided every 200’ of facade on 
Constitution elevations.

Major building recess

Base height - Above average natural 
grade

BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE

15
' - 

0"

20
' - 

0"

24
' - 

0"

10' - 0" 40' - 6"

5' 
- 0

" 5' - 0"5' - 0"

5' 
- 0

"

5' 
- 0

" 5' - 0"

10
' - 

0"

BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE

40' - 3" 9' - 0" 5' 
- 0

"

Municipal Code 16.45120 (2) -
Minor Building Modulations:
Minimum recess of 5’ wide by 5’ deep per 
50’ of façade length facing publicly 
accessible spaces (streets, open space, 
and paseos).

Building projections spaced no more than 
50' apart with a minimum of 3' depth and 
5' width may satisfy this requirement in-
lieu of a recess.

Project Compliance:
At least one minor building recess or 
buildng projection provided every 50’ of 
facade

Minor building recess

Building projections  (

Base height

31
' - 

3"

168' - 6" 50' - 7"

219' - 1"

31
' - 

3"

20' - 2"

5' - 0"

44' - 0"

5' - 0"

44' - 10"

5' - 0"

44' - 8" 8' - 9" 41' - 8"

219' - 1"
50'-0". 40' - 3" 83' - 5"

177' - 8"

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-014d12.18.2019

RESIDENTIAL ZONING COMPIANCE -
BUILDING MASS & SCALE165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

PASEO ELEVATION

JEFFERSON FRONTAGE GROUND FLOOR PLANPASEO FRONTAGE GROUND FLOOR PLAN

JEFFERSON ELEVATION

JEFFERSON ELEVATIONPASEO ELEVATION

UP

BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE

5' 
- 0

"

BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE

Municipal Code 16.45120 (3) -
Ground Floor Transparency:
Minimum 30% for residential uses of the 
ground floor façade that must provide 
visual transparency

Project Compliance:
Transparent glazing exceeds 30% of the 
ground floor facade.  10% Max facade 
surface areas to have non-bird friendly 
glazing.

Ground level transparent glazing surface
Ground level opaque surface

Ground level height

Municipal Code 16.45120 (3) -
Minimum Ground Floor Height Along 
Street Frontage:
Minimum height between the ground-
level finished floor to the second-level 
finish floor along the street.  10’ for 
residential uses; 15' for commercial uses.

Project Compliance:
The ground level height is 16’-3”.

Ground level

Ground level height

16
' - 

3"

MAIN ENTRY GLAZING: 669 SF GLAZED AREA: 521 SF GLAZED AREA: 524 SF GLAZED AREA: 475 SF

39' - 6"

12
' - 

0"

43' - 9"

12
' - 

0"

43' - 9"

12
' - 

0"

65' - 0"

12
' - 

0"

16
' - 

3"

ENTRY GLAZED AREA: 669 SF GLAZED AREA: 521 SF GLAZED AREA: 999 SF

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-014e12.18.2019

RESIDENTIAL ZONING COMPIANCE -
GROUND FLOOR TRANSPARENCY &
HEIGHT

165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

JEFFERSON FRONTAGE GROUND FLOOR PLAN

JEFFERSON ELEVATION
GROUND LEVEL FACADE SURFACE:
MIN REQ'D TRANSPARENT GLAZING SURFACE:

OPAQUE SURFACE PROVIDED:
TRANSPARENT GLAZING SURFACE PROVIDED:

NOTE:  10% MAX FACADE SURFACE AREAS TO HAVE 
NON-BIRD FRIENDLY GLAZING.

3,983 SF
3,983 SF x 30% = 1,195 SF

1,794 SF
2,189 SF
2,189 SF > 1,195 SF  =  COMPLIES

JEFFERSON ELEVATION



UP

BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE BUILDING OVERHANG ABOVE

5' 
- 0

"

Municipal Code 16.45120 (3) -
Garage Entrances:
Maximum 24’ opening for two-way 
entrance

Project Compliance:
A 24’ opening for two-way vehicular 
entrance is provided from the driveway 
off of Jefferson Dr.

Garage opening

Municipal Code 16.45120 (3) -
Awnings, Signs, and Canopies:
Maximum 7’ horizontal projection

Project Compliance:
No awnings or canopies.

Projecting awning and canopy

Municipal Code 16.45120 (6) -
Roof Line:
Roof lines and eaves adjacent to street-
facing facades shall vary across a 
building, including a four-foot minimum 
height modulation to break visual 
monotony and create a visually intersting 
skyline as seen from public streets.

Project Compliance:
Roof line varies across the building, 
including a four-foot minimum height 
modulation.

Roof line

20
' - 

3"

32
' - 

8"

4' 
- 0

".

24' - 0"

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-014g12.18.2019

RESIDENTIAL ZONING COMPIANCE -
GARAGE ENTRANCE, AWNINGS/ SIGNS/
CANOPIES AND ROOF LINE

165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

JEFFERSON FRONTAGE GROUND FLOOR PLAN

JEFFERSON ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

MENLO FLATS

A-01512.18.2019

STREETSCAPE
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

155 JEFFERSON
SINGLE STORY OFFICE BUILDING

175 JEFFERSON
SINGLE STORY OFFICE BUILDING

165 JEFFERSON
MENLO FLATS MIXED-USE BUILDING

1A STUCCO - ACCENT
1B STUCCO - DARK
1C STUCCO - LIGHT

2A FIBER CEMENT BOARD - ACCENT
2B FIBER CEMENT BOARD - DARK
2C FIBER CEMENT BOARD - LIGHT
2D FIBER CEMENT BOARD - BOARD FORMED

3A ALUMINUM SIDING - ACCENT

4A METAL PANEL

5A VINYL WINDOW - DARK
5B VINYL WINDOW - LIGHT

6A STOREFRONT

7A PERFORATED METAL SCREEN
7B ACCENT SCREEN

MATERIAL LEGEND

MENLO FLATS

A-016a12.18.2019

PROJECT ELEVATIONS - MATERIAL
CONCEPT165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

JEFFERSON STREET / SOUTH ELEVATION

PASEO / EAST ELEVATION

1B

3A

2A

4A

6A

4A

6A

6A
4A

2A
2C

1B

2D

2B

2C

7A

84
' - 

11
".

AVG. NATURAL 
GRADE

7B

1A
1B 2C

2B

2B

2C

1A

3A
6A 7A 1A 1B

2D

2B

2B

2B
2B

1B

1A STUCCO - ACCENT
1B STUCCO - DARK
1C STUCCO - LIGHT

2A FIBER CEMENT BOARD - ACCENT
2B FIBER CEMENT BOARD - DARK
2C FIBER CEMENT BOARD - LIGHT
2D FIBER CEMENT BOARD - BOARD FORMED

3A ALUMINUM SIDING - ACCENT

4A METAL PANEL

5A VINYL WINDOW - DARK
5B VINYL WINDOW - LIGHT

6A STOREFRONT

7A PERFORATED METAL SCREEN
7B ACCENT SCREEN

MATERIAL LEGEND

MENLO FLATS

A-016b12.18.2019

PROJECT ELEVATIONS - MATERIAL
CONCEPT165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

NORTH ELEVATION

FIRE SERVICE LANE / WEST ELEVATION

1A 1B 2A 2B2C 2B

1A 1B 3A

4A

7A
6A

2C 2B

7A

7A

2A

2B

2D

1C

7B

7A

2D

2B

7B

1B 1C 1C 1B

2C

2B

7A

7B

2C

1B

1B



2
FE-001

A B C D G

2

1

3

4

5

6

E

P
A 

S 
E

O

Parking layout to be determined
(Parking level P2)

J  E  F  F  E  R  S  O  N     D R I V E

10
' - 

0"
62

' - 
0"

73
' - 

0"
59

' - 
0"

32' - 0" 74' - 6" 95' - 0" 40' - 6" 25' - 0"

10' Wide 
Paseo section 
with 5' setback

22
5' 

- 0
"

267' - 0"

LOADING 
DOCK

BIKE PARKING

5' - 0"

Ramp Up

15' - 0"

26' - 0"

20
' - 

0"
20

4' 
- 0

"
21

' - 
0"

21
' - 

0"

150' HOSE RUN

Tr
as

h 
Co

lle
cti

on
 

Ro
om

P
A 

S 
E

O 
in

Ad
jac

en
t

Pr
op

er
ty 

(N
.I.C

)

NON -RESIDENTIAL 

150' HOSE RUN

Proposed connection of the Project Fire Service lane per 
discussion with Menlo Fire to the Menlo Uptown 
Townhome Site Fire Lane separated by a rolled curb.

Electrical and 
Transformer 

Rooms

Trash 
Enclosure 

(NIC)70' - 4"

MAIL ROOM

RESIDENTIAL 
AMENITIES

2039 SF

F

Rolled Curb (Access 
for FD, trash 
management, loading 
and Utility Only) BIKE PARKING

Rolled Curb (Access 
for FD, trash 
management, loading 
and Utility Only)

Bike Parking/ 
Seating

Pedestrian 
Access Ramp

1
A-013

203' - 0"

Service Area Landscape, 
Not included in the Open 
Space Calculation

Street Level
-1' - 8 1/2"

Level 02
20' - 0"

Level 03
31' - 3"

Level 04
41' - 6"

Level 05
51' - 9"

Level 06 (Roof Terrace)
62' - 9"

Level 07
73' - 0"

10
' - 

3"
11

' - 
0"

10
' - 

3"
10

' - 
3"

11
' - 

3"
16

' - 
3 1

/4"
5' 

- 5
 1/

4"

Residential Lobby/ 
Leasing Office

Level 01
3' - 8 3/4"

2 1

Non-Residential

Level 08 (Roof)
84' - 11"

70
.00

0°

PROPERTY LINE

Residential Units

11' - 0"

(7
5' 

- 0
" M

AX
.)

74
' - 

8 1
/2"

JEFFERSON DR

Double height Residential 
Amenity Beyond

Residential Units

Residential Units

11
' - 

11
"

Level P1
13' - 2 3/4"

Average Natural Grade
0' - 0"

Level P2
22' - 2 3/4"

Level P0 (BFE)
2' - 8 3/4"

4' 
- 5

 1/
4"

Residential Units

Residential Units

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

FE-00112.18.2019

FIRE EXHIBIT
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

1" = 20'-0"2 NORTH SOUTH BUILDING SECTION

JEFFERSON STREET
267' - 0"

22
5' 

- 0
"

165 JEFFERSON 
STREET

NOTE: THIS IS NOT A SURVEY. DIMENSIONS SHOWN TO 
NEIGHBORING PROJECTS ARE FOR REFERENCE ONLY. 
FUTURE SURVEY TO VERIFY/ CONFIRM EXACT NUMBERS.

190 CONSTITUTION
SINGLE STORY SPORTS 

CLUB BUILDING

155 JEFFERSON
SINGLE STORY OFFICE 

BUILDING

160 JEFFERSON DR.
2-STORY OFFICE 

BUILDING

175 JEFFERSON
SINGLE STORY OFFICE 

BUILDING

PARKING PARKING 

180 AND 186 CONSTITUTION
PROPOSED THREE STORY TOWNHOMES

(MENLO UPTOWN)

200 CONSTITUTION
SINGLE STORY OFFICE 

BUILDING

180 JEFFERSON
THREE STORY 
OFFICE BUILDING

VIF
+/- 57' - 11"

VI
F

+/-
 34

' - 
10

"

72' - 0"

VIF
+/- 71' - 1"

VIF+/- 1
15' 

- 6"

VIF+/-
 10

2' -
 6" VIF

+/- 241' - 1"

EXISTING OFFICE 
TO BE REMOVED

VI
F

+/-
 93

' - 
11

"

VIF
+/- 129' - 1"

EXISTING OFFICE EXISTING OFFICE 

VI
F

+/
- 4

8' 
- 1

"

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-003a12.18.2019

AREA PLAN
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

1" = 30'-0"2 AREA PLAN

0 15' 30'

JEFFERSON STREET

267' - 0"

22
5' 

- 0
"

0'-0" REQUIRED 
MIN.FRONT SETBACK
(0'-0" SET BACK 
PROVIDED)

25
' - 

0"

5' - 0" (PASEO SETBACK)

PROVIDED IN THE PROJECT
10' - 0" (PASEO PORTION 

10
' - 

0"

10' - 0"

10'-0" REQUIRED MIN. 
REAR SETBACK

10'-0" REQUIRED 
MIN. SIDE SETBACK

24'-0" WIDE 
VEHICULAR 
ACCESS ROAD

136' - 6"

20'-0" REQUIRED 
MIN. FIRE ACCESS 
LANE

165 JEFFERSON STREET
(1.38 Acres i.e., 60,075sf)

EXISTING OFFICE 
TO BE REMOVED

32' - 0" SETBACK

21
' - 

0"
 S

ET
BA

CK

15' - 0" SETBACK

20
' - 

0"

10'-0" REQUIRED 
MIN. SIDE SETBACK

N 0 10' 20'MENLO FLATS

A-003b12.18.2019

SITE PLAN
165 JEFFERSON DRIVE, MENLO PARK, CA

0      8'     16'    



Greystar Projects in Menlo Park

ELAN MENLO PARK

3645 Haven Ave
146 Units

Completed: 2017 

MENLO PORTAL

Constitution & Independence Drives
335 Units + 36K Commercial

Target Entitlements: Dec 2020
Anticipated Construction Start: Jan 2021

Anticipated First Units: Early 2023

MENLO FLATS

165 Jefferson Drive
158 Units + 15K Commercial

Target Entitlements: May 2021
Anticipated Construction Start: Fall 2021

Anticipated First Units: Fall 2023

MENLO UPTOWN

Constitution & Jefferson Drives
441 Units + 42 Townhomes

Target Entitlements: Dec 2020
Anticipated Construction Start: Dec 2020

Anticipated First Units: Winter 2022



From: Adina Levin
To: _Planning Commission
Subject: Planning Commission - 165 Jefferson Drive
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 6:33:58 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Unless you recognize
the sender's email address and know the content is safe, DO NOT click links, open
attachments or reply.

Dear Planning Commissioners,

Menlo Together is a group of Menlo Park and Peninsula residents who envision a city that is
integrated and diverse, multi-generational, and environmentally sustainable.  

Following are a few comments regarding the project proposal at 165 Jefferson Drive that you
are reviewing this evening.

We understand that because of SB330, the City of Menlo Park is limited in the scope of its
discretion with regard to housing projects that fit the city’s General Plan and Zoning.

That said, there are several open issues with regard to this project that relate to Menlo
Together’s goals of housing affordability, sustainable transportation, and social equity.

Affordable housing and Community Amenities.  The development is proposed to include 15%
Below Market Rate housing units, in line with the city’s inclusionary policy. The development
is also required to offer community amenities in line with the proposal at the Bonus level of
development.  The City Council has set a preference for the R-MU-B zoning district, the City
Council included a preference that additional affordable housing units be provided as the
community amenity.

Menlo Park has a major need for affordable housing, and we recommend that the Planning
Commission prioritize affordable housing for the community amenity.   

Paseo design - walk-bike access and public space. We support the Staff report’s good analysis
and recommendations regarding the improvements to the Paseo to connect it to the public
open space and commercial uses, and to connect to adjacent properties as they redevelop in the
future. These improvements would help the Paseo do a better job of contributing to public
access to amenities for city residents and encouraging healthy active transportation.

Parking and Transportation Demand Management.  The development is proposed to have 158
apartments including 21 affordable homes with 138 car parking stalls, to be offered unbundled
and 267 bike parking stalls. 

We used the TransForm Connect tool to analyze the transportation features of this project. The
results of the analysis can be seen here: https://connect.greentrip.org/map-tool.php?p=258098  
 

The GreenTrip analysis indicates that the building would generate 50% less driving and
climate impact considering the affordable housing and unbundled parking, and with the
addition of transit passes, carshare and bikeshare.  Based on this analysis, we recommend that:

mailto:aldeivnian@gmail.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
https://connect.greentrip.org/map-tool.php?p=258098


* The residents should be provided with transit passes 
* The developer and city should work with SamTrans to ensure that the area has bus service,
which can be improved in the current Reimagine SamTrans planning process
* The developer should provide carshare and micromobility share (bike and/or scooter) 

Thank you for your consideration,
Adina
Adina Levin
for Menlo Together
https://menlotogether.org
650-646-4344

https://menlotogether.org/


From:
To:

Subject:
Date:

no-reply@menlopark.org

Online Form Submittal: April 20, 2020, Planning Commission Meeting Public Comments
Monday, April 20, 2020 5:03:15 PM

April 20, 2020, Planning Commission Meeting Public Comments

April 20, 2020, Planning Commission Meeting Public Comments
Thank you for your interest in the Planning Commission's upcoming discussions.
Please use the form below to submit your comments no later than one (1) hour
before the meeting. Comments received by that time will be forwarded to the
Planning Commission and included as part of the public record for the meeting,
just as if you had come to comment in person.

Agenda items on which to comment:
D. Public Comment (general)
E1. Approval of minutes from the March 23, 2020, Planning Commission meeting.
F1. Use Permit/Wenfen Wang/488 Gilbert Avenue (Continued to a future meeting
by the applicant)
F2. Use Permit and Architectural Control/R. Tod Spieker/1466 San Antonio Street
G1. Study Session/Andrew Morcos/165 Jefferson Drive

Agenda item number Ga

Subject 165 Jefferson

Meeting date Field not completed.

Public comment Planning Commission and Staff,
The Community Amenities List is based on a survey completed
in 2015 and is severely out of date. I recommend the most
appropriate amenity is an increase of at least 10% the
affordability of units. By the time these units are completed we
will be in the middle of a significant down-turn in the economy.
Respectfully,
Pamela D Jones

First name Pamela

Last name Jones

Email address

What is your affiliation? Resident

Other Field not completed.

Address1 1371 Hollyburn Avenue

Address2 Field not completed.

mailto:no-reply@menlopark.org


City Menlo Park

State CA

Zip 94025-1309

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

http://menlopark.org/Admin/FormCenter/Submissions/Edit?id=9889&categoryID=0&formID=302&displayType= SubmissionsView&startDate= &endDate= &dateRange= Last30Days&searchKeyword= &currentPage= 0&sortFieldID= 0&sortAscending= False&selectedFields= &parameters= CivicPlus.Entities.Core.ModuleParameter&submissionDataDisplayType=0&backURL=%2fAdmin%2fFormCenter%2fSubmissions%2fIndex%2f302%3fcategoryID%3d9

	Date:   4/20/2020
	A. Call To Order
	C. Reports and Announcements

	Senior Planner Corinna Sandmeier said the City Council at its April 21, 2020 meeting would hear the 11 Greenwood Place project that was approved by the Planning Commission on March 23, 2020 for a new two-story home on a substandard lot. She said that...
	Commissioner Chris DeCardy asked how staff was addressing inequity for those without internet service related to public access to the meetings. Planner Sandmeier said in response to an earlier comment staff received about those who only had audio acce...
	Commissioner Michele Tate asked about additional steps made to make community members aware of meetings. Planner Sandmeier noted that notifications for projects are mailed to those within a 300-foot radius of a subject property and include a published...
	D.  Public Comment
	I.  Adjournment
	Menlo Park Greystar Projects site.pdf
	Greystar Projects in Menlo Park


